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General Description of fonds

MG 24 F 3
William Moodie Bell (1777-1837).  Naval shipwright and farmer.
Originals, 1772, n.d., 1800-1838.  0.06 m.  Photocopies, 1818, 2 pages.  Finding Aid 1721.
   
William Moodie Bell (1777-1837) was the son of John Bell and his wife Ann, née Stenhouse.
He was born on 9 January and baptized on 12 January 1777 in the parish of Aberdour, near
Kirkcaldy in Fifeshire, Scotland.  He entered the employ of the Provincial Marine as a naval
shipwright and began his career at Amherstburg, Upper Canada, in June 1799.  There he
designed and built vessels for the Great Lakes service.  Many of these were lost in 1813 at the
Battle of Lake Erie, after which he was evacuated from Amherstburg, at the time of the retreat
from the Western District, and served thereafter at the Kingston dockyard.  The Admiralty's
appointment of Thomas Strickland as Master Builder in Upper Canada displaced Bell from
that position, but in 1814 he was appointed as Strickland's assistant.  Upon Strickland's death
in 1815, Bell became Acting Master Builder in Upper Canada until the end of 1816, when the
establishment at Kingston was reduced and Bell returned to Scotland.

Having succeeded in obtaining a government pension, Bell returned to Canada, where he
seems to have considered going into partnership with his brother John Bell (1779-1841) and
a French Canadian shipbuilder, François Romain, at Quebec, before settling down as a farmer
at Little River, Lower Canada.

By his first wife, Ruth Devonport, he had at least one daughter, Elizabeth, who married James
Cullen.  His second wife, Jessie Inglis, bore him four sons, of whom John, the eldest, became
a farmer at Amherstburg, where his father had acquired property during his years as Master
Builder there.  William Bell died and was buried at Quebec, 9 September 1837. 

A small collection of Bell's correspondence was acquired in 1937.  Some additions to the
correspondence, which are asterisked in the list of descriptions for file 1 provided in the
finding aid, were acquired in 1938, together with Bell's Letterbook, 1800-1838. In July 1987,
Bell's memorial of 10 June 1818 (file 1, page 96) was found to be missing, and Dr. W.A.B.
Douglas of the Directorate of History in the Department of National Defence, Ottawa,
Ontario, kindly supplied a photocopy of his notes taken previously from the original.  Two
returns of provisions, 1772, which were with the correspondence acquired in 1938, appear to
have no connection with Bell.

                                                          



Provision Returns, 1772.  (Originals, 4 pages.)
Two provision returns, 8 and 11 June 1772, for men of the 60th and 8th Regiments
respectively  (File 1, pp. 1-4).  No connection between these documents and William Bell is
apparent.

Correspondence, n.d., l800-1826, 1836.  (Originals, 125 pages.  Photocopies, 2 pages.)
Letters, petitions, etc., of William Bell (1777-1837).  Included are:
letters to Bell, and a few copies of letters from him, relating to his work as a naval shipwright
in Upper Canada; his personal financial arrangements; his purchases of land; his efforts to
obtain a pension and compensation for his war losses; certificates relating to those losses; the
management of his lands in Upper Canada by his agent in Amherstburg; a sketch and
specifications for vessels to be built by Bell; accounts; and a few more personal items; as well
as a shop license for Lachlan McDonell of Cornwall whose connection with Bell is obscure
(File 1, pp. 5-127). 

Letterbook, n.d., 1804-1836, 1838.  (Original, 0.05 m.)
Copies of letters, certificates, etc., written or received by William Bell (1777-1837), and one
letter written by his son John Bell.  In addition to the same topics dealt with in the papers in
File 1, there is correspondence relating to William Bell's legal disputes with his brother John
Bell (1779-l841) of Quebec; to the payment of his pension; to his business with his brother-in-
law, David Inglis of Dunfermline, Scotland, from whom he annually ordered clothes, farming
equipment, etc.; his opposition to the marriage of his daughter Elizabeth; and the education
in Scotland of his eldest son, John  (File 2, pp. 1-255).  The arrangement of the letterbook, in
so far as it can be said to have an arrangement, is topical rather than chronological, and the
reader is recommended to make use of the  listing in Finding Aid 1721, which integrates the
entries in the letterbook with the loose papers in File 1 in a single chronological sequence. 
  

                             



Microfilm reel H-1956
- Provision Returns, 1772
File 1-1  Pages 1-4
- Correspondence, n.d., 1800-1826, 1836
File 1-1  Pages 5-72
- Correspondence, n.d., 1800-1826, 1836
File 1-2  Pages 73-127
- Letterbook, n.d., 1804-1836, 1838
File 2  Pages 1-255



WILLIAM MOODIE BELL (1777-1837)
Finding Aid No. 1721

(MG 24, F 3)
Prepared by Patricia Birkett of the Pre-Confederation Archives Section in 1988

                                                                                                             
Place & Date Author Recipient Description

Montreal
 8 June  1772

J.  Rochat,
Quartermaster,
1st. Battalion,
60th Regt.

Victualling
Contractors

Return of provisions drawn 25 April -
? June 1772.

Montreal
11 June  1772

Corporal
J. Parkinson

Victualling
Contractors

Return of rations for three men of Capt. Lernoult's Compan
Regt., 11 - 17 June 1772.

n.d. William Bell,
Master Builder

Sketch, giving dimensions, for a vessel of 73 tons.

n.d. Notes on costs relating to the brig ROSE MAKROON.

Amherstburgh
n.d.

E.W. Buchan William Bell,
Master Builder,
Naval Yard,
Amherstburgh

Request for shipbuilding assistance.

Quebec
12 July  1800

Robert Harrower,
c/o Charles
Stewart

William Bell,
Ship Carpenter,
Amherstburg

Personal news and business.

Quebec
21 Dec.  1800

[H.] Baldwin William Bell,
Ship Carpenter,
H.M. Yard,
Amherstburgh

Personal news and business.

Deputy
Commissary
General's
Office, Quebec
 4 Feb.  1801

George M. Taylor Robert Harrower Receipt for £100, to be paid to William Bell on Demand.



Quebec
 5 Feb.  1801

Robert Harrower William Bell,
H.M. Dockyard,
Amherstburg

Business, news, and questions about the farm

Amherstburg
28 Nov.  1804

William Bell Major Curry,
Deputy Quarter-
master General,
York, U.C.

Giving an account of his difficulties regardi
asking what he is entitled to as Builder and 
man in the yard at Amherstburg.

Amherstburg
20 Jan.  1806

William Bell Hon. John Craigie,
Deputy Commissary
General and Store
Keeper General,
Quebec

Will be needing the money on deposit with 
brother John in starting his own shipbuildin
mentions various expenses he has incurred, 
Craigie because he does not know the Quart
well.

Amherstburg
20 Jan.  1807

William Bell,
Builder and Foreman of
Artificers,
Marine Dept.

John Craigie Regarding Bell's difficulties in connection w
his quarters, and his lack of an apprentice.

with :

Quebec
19 March 1807

John Craigie Thomas Reynolds Request that the matters raised in the above 
suitably dealt with.

St. Joseph's
31 Oct.  1807

John Lawrie,
Gunner, R.A.

William Bell,
Maldon

Business letter regarding cheese, sugar, and 

Fort Erie
13 Feb.  1808

Charles Usher William Bell,
Shipwright,
Amherstburgh

Personal and job news.

Montreal
 8 July  1809

David David William Bell,
Master Builder,
Amherstburg

Master Builders are not entitled to any bulka

Montreal
22 Sept. 1809

David David William Bell Has sent Bell salt, but no sugar.

Amherstburg
22 July  1810

William Bell William Dickson
(1769-1846),
Attorney at Law,
Niagara, U.C.

Regarding Dickson's power of attorney for t
Lieutenant David Cowan, to permit him to s
which Bell has purchased land.

Montreal
 1 Aug.  1810

David David William Bell Account for the salt and sugar David has for



Amherstburg
14 June  1811

William Bell William Dickson Promise to pay $800 for 100 acres joining th
Amherstburg, on delivery of a good and law
put in possession of the land.

Montreal
 5 July  1811

Matthew Reed,
Shipwright,
Nr Muses Dock Yard

[William Bell] Shipbuilding and personal news.  Addressed
& Master".

Amherstburg
22 July  1811

William Bell William Dickson Because of questions that have been raised r
power of attorney, Bell is stopping payment
the late Lieutenant David Cowan's land unti
possession of it.

Montreal
 7 Sept. 1811

David David William Bell,
Amherstburg

Defending himself against Bell's complaints
account.

Three Rivers
15 Sept. 1811

James Davidson William Bell,
H.M. Master Ship
Builder, Amherstburg

Giving news and offering to sell Bell a lot o
Crosby.

Amherstburg
 3 Oct.  1811

William Bell William Dickson Asks how he is to get possession of the land
from the estate of the late Lieutenant David 
requests that William Smith, who will not y
land, 
be prevented from cutting down timber on it

[Amherstburg]
26 Nov.  1811

William Bell David David Note of a letter enclosing payment for Bell's
recording damage to and loss from the spirit

Sandwich
29 Dec.  1811

John and James
McGregor

William Bell,
Amherstburg

Enclosing a timber contract.  (No enclosure 

Amherstburg
18 Jan.  1812

William Bell William Dickson Has heard from his brother in Quebec that h
and urges Dickson to get him possession of 
him.  Sets out the expenses of the purchase.

Montreal
25 April 1812

David David William Bell,
Amherstburg

Business.  The damage to his cask of spirits 



Amherstburg
 6 May   1812

William Bell James Woods,
Attorney at Law,
Sandwich, U.C.

Regarding the ejection of William Smith fro
bought from Mr. Dickson.

Montreal
 6 July  1812

Matthew Reed William Bell,
Amherstburg

Personal letter giving news of an engagemen
rebels and of expectations of war.

H.M. Ship
QUEEN 
CHARLOTTE
 6 July  1813

Robert Heriot
Barclay, Senior
Naval Officer on
Lake Erie

William Bell,
Master Builder of
H.M. Dock Yard

Order for work to be done on the schooners 
ERIE, and for two carpenters to assist in ma
them.

Amherstburg
 6 Sept. 1813

William Bell &
Charles Usher

Charles Usher &
William Bell

Mutual quittance regarding the settling of th
other.

Montreal
27 Jan.  1814

Jonathan Hay,
Bombardier, R.A.

William Bell,
Ship Builder,
Kingston, U.C.

News.  Asks on behalf of his brother to know
allowances of the Master Ships Builder in th
Kingston.

Kingston
13 May   1814

Amherstburg Dock-
yard Artificers :
  William Labery
  John White
  Moses Murphy
  Henry Webb
  William Taply
  John Wheeten
  Benjamin Miller

Sworn certificate regarding William Bell's lo
the evacuation of Amherstburg.

Naval Yard
Kingston
18 July  1814

Richard O'Conor,
Acting Commissioner

Noah Freer,
Military Secretary,
Montreal

Forwarding a memorial of William Bell, late
of this yard, and recommending him as dese
favourable consideration.

Quebec
30 July  1814

Capt. John Caddy,
R.A., Brevet Major

Certificate that William Bell was 
Master Builder in H.M. Dockyard at Amher
immediate supervision for almost four years
diligent and faithful servant to Government.

Quebec
30 July  1814

Henry Procter,
Major General

Noah Freer,
Military Secretary

Certificate attesting William Bell's 
great zeal and ability as Master Shipbuilder 
Naval Yard, while under Procter's command
the retreat from the Western District.



Admiralty
Office
21 Oct.  1814

John Barrow,
Secretary

William Bell,
Late Master Builder,
Canada

Notice of Bell's appointment as Assistant to 
Shipwright of H.M. Naval Yards in Canada

with :

Navy Office
22 Oct.  1814

Navy Board :
  William Shields
  R. Seppings
  H. Legge

Edward Laws,
Naval Storekeeper,
Canada

Warrant to enter William Bell as Assistant t
Shipwright in Canada, in accordance with h
October 1814.

Kingston Naval
Yard
28 June  1815

Sir Robert Hall,
Acting Commissioner
of the Navy to
Canada

William Bell,
Builder's Assistant,
Naval Yard, Kingston

Order to go to Montreal and superintend the
GOSHAWK and COLIBRI.

Montreal
 5 July  1815

William Bell,
Master Shipwright

Sir Robert Hall,
Kingston

Report on his findings at Montreal.

Montreal 
10 July  1815

[William Bell] Memorandum regarding abandonment of th
brigs and a frigate because of the excessive 

Montreal
10 July  1815

William Bell,
Assistant Master
Shipwright

Edward Laws,
Naval Storekeeper,
Kingston

Regarding Bell's pay, quarters,
stationery, rations, etc.

St. Lawrence
11 July  1815

J. Marks William Bell Enclosing for Bell's signature a voucher that
and enquiring about the building of the brig

Montreal
13 July  1815

William Bell Edward Laws,
Kingston

Request for orders, since the building of the
sent to superintend has been cancelled.

Montreal
15 July  1815

William Bell,
Assistant Master
Shipwright

Richard O'Conor,
Late Commissioner,
Naval Yard,
Kingston, U.C.

Regarding the forwarding to O'Conor of vou
Mr. Reynolds, which had been forwarded to
by Mr. Marks.

Montreal
20 July  1815

William Bell,
Assistant Master
Shipwright,
Kingston

Thomas Strickland,
Master Shipwright,
Kingston

Request to be ordered back to
Kingston, since there is no work for him in M

Montreal
20 July  1815

William Bell Charles Usher Private business regarding Usher's prize mo



Montreal
 9 June  1815
Kingston
18 June  1815
Montreal
 4 Aug.  1815
Kingston
 1 Sept.  1815

J.-B. H.M. Commissariat Bills, etc., for the journey of Master Builder
Bell, and Master Sailmaker Ralph, from Mo
Prescott.

Kingston
 4 Sept, 1815

William Bell William Dickson Has seen the heirs of the late Lieutenant Dav
last winter and obtained copies of their lette
Asks either to be put in possession of his pu
have his purchase money returned to him.

Kingston
18 Sept. 1815

William Bell,
Assistant to the
Master Shipwright

J.W. Croker,
Secretary to the
Admiralty

Petition asking to be appointed Master Ship
the place of Mr. Strickland, deceased.  Give
service together with the names of officers w
him.

Partial draft of the
above.

    71

William Bell William Dickson Asking whether Bell
or William Smith is
to have possession of
Mr. Cowan's land
that Bell has
purchased from Mr.
Dickson.

William Bell Capt. Owan Space left for copy of
letter.

n.d. Capt. Owan William Bell Space left for copy of letter.



n.d. William Bell Capt. Owan Space left for copy of letter.

n.d. Sir Robert Hall William Bell Space left for copy of letter.

n.d. William Bell Sir Robert Hall Space left for copy of letter.

n.d. Sir Robert Hall William Bell Space left for copy of letter.

Admiralty
Office
31 Oct.  1815

John Barrow William Bell,
Acting Master
Shipwright,
Kingston

Acknowledging Bell's letter of 18 October 
he be continued as Master Shipwright at K
Bell, 2 February 1816.)

Amherstburg
 6 June  1816

Hannah Mickle William Bell,
Master Builder,
Naval Yard,
Kingston

Thanking Bell for two payments and giving

Kingston
 1 Oct.  1816

Edward Laws,
 Naval Storekeeper;
Michael Spratt,
 Master Attendant;
Robert Moor,
 Master Shipwright;
Sir Robert Hall,
 Commissioner

Navy Board Certificate attesting that William Bell, late 
the Naval Yard at Kingston, W.C., had con
the greatest diligence and integrity and had
servant to the public.

Quebec
11 Oct.  1816

John Bell (1779-1841)
Ship Builder,
Brother of William 
Bell

William Bell Receipt for £42.18.0, the balance due in fu
accounts between the brothers, William an

Kingston
Naval Yard
23 Dec.  1816

Capt. W.F.W. Owen,
Acting Commissioner
of the Navy to
Canada

Edward Laws,
 Naval Storekeeper;
William Bell,
 Assistant Builder

Order to build a transport of about 300 ton

Aberdour
Scotland
24 Dec.  1816

William Bell,
Late Assistant,
Master Shipwright,
Canada

R.A. Neelson,
Navy Office,
London

Reports arrival with his family at Leith on 
Encloses a certificate of his service in Cana
further employment or a pension commens
18 years' service as a naval shipbuilder.



Navy Office
 3 Jan.  1817

Navy Board :
  H. Peake
  Robert Sepping
  H. Legge

William Bell,
Late Assistant to
the Master Ship-
wright, Kingston,
Aberdour

Acknowledging the above letter, returning 
enclosed in it, and advising that his request
be made to the Colonial Office, not to the N

London
27 Jan.  1817

William Bell R.H. Nelson,
Secretary,
Navy Board

Thanking the Board for its advice
regarding his pension application.
States that he has received his pay at
Kingston up to the end of September
1816.  Asks that he may be paid up to the t
England, and receive an additional allowan
Acting Master Shipwright from 10 Septem
February 1816, when he was superseded by

London
28 Jan. 1817

William Bell Lord Bathurst
(1762-1834),
Secretary of State
for War and Colonies

Application for a pension, giving an accou
Canada from June 1799 and enclosing cert
[See File 2, pp. 2-4].

London
30 Jan.  1817

William Bell Lord Bathurst Further regarding Bell's application for a p
with the Navy Board Regulations that appl
situation.

London
 8 Feb.  1817

William Bell Henry Goulburn
(1784-1856), Under-
Secretary for War
and Colonies

Enclosing a letter from the Navy Board wit
last service.  Asks for a reply to his letter o
Enquires how he may
obtain compensation for his losses as a resu
of
Amherstburg, 23 September 1813.

Downing Street
[Colonial
 Office]
10 Feb.  1817

Henry Goulburn William Bell Returns the above letter and enclosure, and 
claim for 
compensation of war losses should have bee
Commissioners
appointed in Canada in 1815.

London
14 Feb.  1817

William Bell Lord Bathurst Explaining why Bell had not been able to m
claim in 
Amherstburg in 1815.

London
14 Feb.  1817

William Bell Sworn statement of Bell's war losses of £11
evacuation of
Amherstburg in 1813.



Downing Street
[Colonial
 Office]
18 Feb.  1817

Henry Goulburn William Bell,
Aberdour,
Fifeshire,
North Britain

Lord Bathurst will refer Bell's request for w
compensation to Sir John Sherbrooke in Can
for a pension to the Commissioners of the A

Dunfermline
26 Feb.  1817

John Cowan Statement that he believes Bell's claim for lo
an underesti-
mate.  Mentions his knowledge of Bell's pro
including the land there that Cowan himself

Aberdour
27 Feb.  1817

William Bell,
Late Master
Shipwright,
Kingston, Canada

Henry Goulburn,
Under-Secretary for
War and Colonies

Transmitting the various certificates to be for
and providing the names of officers of the 41
who could endorse his claims.
[Enclosures.]

Aberdour
28 April 1817

William Bell A.F. MacKintosh,
Navy Office

Giving detailed particulars of the pay he rece
- 20
December 1816.

Aberdour
14 May   1817

William Bell J.W. Croker,
Secretary to the
Admiralty

Asking for a pension and giving some
account of his service and the way in which h
departmental stools, with the Navy
Board referring him to the Colonial Office an
in its
turn to the Admiralty.
[Enclosure ?]

Aberdour
14 May   1817

William Bell William Dickson,
Attorney at Law,
Niagara, U.C.

Asking that if William Smith has not been eje
Bell
purchased from the Cowan estate
through Dickson, Dickson will return the pur
interest, in accordance with the arrangement 
letter of 9 December 1811 
to Bell.  Repayment to be made either to John
to David
Harrower, Distiller, of Quebec.



Aberdour
23 May   1817

William Bell David Harrower,
Distiller,
Quebec

Giving an account of his purchase, 14 June 1
Amherstburg,
from John Cowan, the heir of his
brother Lieutenant David Cowan,
through the attorney of the Cowan
estate, William Dickson of Niagara.
Encloses a copy of his letter to Dickson abov
brother
John Bell will be returning to
Scotland, asks Harrower to receive on his beh
purchase money, if William Smith has still no
of the property.

Aberdour
23 May   1817

William Bell William Dickson Asking for the return of his money, if William
been ejected from the land Bell had purchase

Aberdour
28 May   1817

William Bell William Dickson Asking for the return of his money, if William
been ejected from the land Bell had purchase

Aberdour
28 May   1817

William Bell David Harrower Asking Harrower to receive on Bell's
behalf the return of the purchase
money for land sold him by William
Dickson, if possession of the land
has still not been obtained for him.

Amherstburg
10 Oct.  1817

Angus McDonald,
Tanner

John Bell,
Shipbuilder,
Quebec

Lengthy account of business relating to Willi
Malden
Township, for which McDonald has a
watching brief only, with no power of
attorney.  Asks John Bell to forward
McDonald's letter to his brother William
Bell.

Aberdour
30 Dec.  1817

William Bell Angus McDonald,
Tanner,
Amherstburg, U.C.

Lengthy answer to the above.
Arranges with McDonald to be his
agent and gives detailed instructions
regarding his lands, timber, furniture, etc.  Co
version
of Bell's indebtedness to him given in
the above letter.



Aberdour
 7 Jan.  1818

William Bell Lord Bathurst Reminding him of their correspondence
in February 1817 and of his need to
know what he may expect in regard to
compensation for his war losses and a
pension for his long service to the
Government.

Aberdour
20 Feb.  1818

William Bell Dr. Robert
Richardson,
Amherstburg

Does not wish to sell the land he
bought from John Cowan.  Plans to
come out this summer or next to build
houses on his lands and lease them to
farmers that he intends to bring with him.

Aberdour
20 Feb.  1818

Williamd Bell Angus McDonald,
Amherstburg

Was happy to learn from McDonald's
letter of 5 December 1817 that he had
got possession of the land Bell had
bought from John Cowan in 1811.  Does
not wish to sell it to McDonald and
has also refused Dr. Richardson.  Gives
instructions regarding leasing of his
lands, asks questions about prices, and
sends greetings to his various friends.

Aberdour
 3 March 1818

William Bell Lord Bathurst Acknowledges letter of 20 January 1818
stating that his case has been referred
to the Lords Commissioners of the 
Treasury.  Asks for Bathurst's
continued good offices and notification
when a decision has been reached.

Amherstburg
22 May   1818

Angus McDonald William Bell Replies to Bell's letter of 30 December
1817.  Gives details regarding the leas-ing of
difficulty of
finding tenants who would accept Bell's
terms.  He cannot act satisfactorily for
Bell without his power of attorney.  Reports o
gives general news.



London
10 June  1818

William Bell Memorial asking for a pension.  Gives a
detailed account of his service, with
dates of appointments and terminations,
salary, and the names and tonnages of
vessels that he was responsible for
building.  Gives an account of his being
wounded and of his financial losses as a resu
Amherstburg by the Americans in 1813.

Note :  This document was found to be
missing, 27 July 1987.  Notes previously
taken from the original were kindly
supplied, 3 September 1987, by Dr.
W.A.B. Douglas, of the Directorate of
History in the Department of National
Defence, for the information of other
researchers.

Haymarket
London
13 June  1818

William Bell,
Late Master
Builder of
Canada

Lord Bathurst Reminds Bathurst that Bell has still
received no decision on his request for
a pension and compensation for his war
losses.

London
13 June  1818

William Bell,
Late Master
Shipwright,
Canada

George Harrison,
Secretary to the
Treasury

Is writing at the instance of Lord 
Bathurst to enquire about the status of
his case.

London
22 June  1818

William Bell George Harrison Supplying him with the Navy Board's
regulations regarding pensions for
dockyard officers retiring as a result
of peace.

London
24 June  1818

William Bell William Hamilton
(1777-1859),
Under-Secretary for
Foreign Affairs

Thanking him for his effective inter-
vention in Bell's case and promising to
inform Lord Elgin that Hamilton's
favour had achieved a satisfactory
termination to Bell's application for
a pension.

Treasury
30 June  1818

Copy of a Treasury Minute recording the dec
applica-
tion for a pension.

Treasury
Chambers
 2 July  1816
        (sic)

George Harrison William Bell,
Haymarket

Informing him that he has been granted a pen
from 20 Decem-
ber 1816, when his pay as Acting
Master Shipwright at Kingston ceased.



Treasury
Chambers
13 July  1818

George Harrison Henry Goulburn Transmitting the Treasury Minute of
30 June 1818 above, relating to Bell's
petition for compensation for his losses
and services.

Amherstburg
 9 Oct.  1818

Angus McDonald William Bell Begs Bell's assistance in getting his
widowed sister, Christiana Reed, and
her children from Britain to Amherst-
burg.  Replies to Bell's questions, asks questi
of Bell's
affairs in Amherstburg, and gives
greetings and news from Amherstburg,
including information about the building of a
there.

Aberdour
27 Nov.  1818

William Bell Angus McDonald Answers McDonald's letters of 22 May
and 17 July 1818.  Does not wish to
sell his lands nor lease them for less
than he previously stated.  He plans to
come out next summer and build houses
and arrange tenants as may be necessary.  Giv
regard-
ing the illicit cutting of his timber.
Passes on greetings from his daughters
Ann and Elizabeth to McDonald's
sisters.

Aberdour
 8 Dec.  1818

William Bell Christiana Reed,
Sunderland,
England

Condolences regarding the death of her
husband Matthew Reed.  Arrangements
for getting her and her children to 
Amherstburg in response to the request
of her brother, Angus McDonald.

Aberdour
27 Dec.  1818

William Bell Angus McDonald Arrangements for the interim support
of McDonald's sister, Mrs. Reed, and
for her passage out to him in Amherst-burg.

London
 6 March 1819

William Bell Christiana Reed,
Sunderland

Arrangements regarding her journey to
Amherstburg.

London
26 March 1819

William Bell Angus McDonald Travelling arrangements for McDonald's
sister, Christiana Reed.

London
 3 April 1819

William Bell Angus McDonald Travelling arrangements for McDonald's
sister, Christiana Reed.  Instructions
regarding Bell's Amherstburg lands.



Amherstburg
20 July  1819

Angus McDonald William Bell Answer to Bell's letter of 27 November
1818, regarding the leasing of his lands
in Amherstburg, his furniture, etc.
Thanks Bell for the assistance given by
him and his brother, John Bell in
Quebec, to McDonald's sister, Christiana
Reed.  Gives a good deal of Amherst-
burg news.

Quebec
20 Nov.  1820

John Bell William Bell Draft for £300 stg. for repairs done to
the brig ANTOINETTE.  Endorsed by
William Bell with an order to pay
Charles R. Broughton.

Kirkcaldy
 1 Feb.  1821

William Bell Angus McDonald Reply to McDonald's letter of 12 Sept-
ember 1820.  Comments on the news of
many of his friends and acquaintances 
at Amherstburg.  Gives some instruct-
ions regarding business matters in
connection with his property at
Amherstburg and the repayment of the
money advanced for Christiana Reed's travel 

Kirkcaldy
 1 July  1821

William Bell George Harrison,
Treasury Chambers

Requisition for payment of his pension,
31 December 1820 - 30 June 1821.

London
12 March 1823

Richard O'Conor,
Late Commissioner,
Kingston Naval
Dockyard

[William Bell] Arrangements in connection with put-
ting forward his correspondent's claims,
which a friend of O'Conor at Head
Quarters has promised to support.

London
14 March 1823

Richard O'Conor [William Bell] Advising that his correspondent come
to London to draw up a proper memor-ial.  O
money to
finance his journey, if necessary.

Quebec
22 June  1825

James Black Dimensions and scantling for a brig
of 160 tons to be built for James
Black, by October 1825, by William and
John Bell.  With cession, dated Quebec
15 November 1825, by John Bell to
William Bell, of every claim to profit
or otherwise in the building of the
vessel.



Quebec
19 July  1825

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton,
London.  
Bell's agent for
receiving his
pension from the
Treasury

Has sent the Treasury the requisition
for his pension, 31 December 1824 - 30 June
Thiselton
to remit same to Bell's brother-in-law,
David Inglis, Merchant in Dunfermline,
who would supply him with a receipt.  
(For Bell's list of pension payments,
31 December 1824 - 30 September 1836,
see File 2 page 255.)  Has had a good 
passage from the Orkneys to Quebec.
Shipbuilding prospects.  Is thinking
of bringing his family out to join
him.

Quebec
25 Oct.  1825

William Bell
     &
John Bell

William Bell
    &
John Bell

Settlement of accounts, finding that
William Bell owes John Bell £690.11.8,
which is to be paid on demand.  With
John Bell's receipt for £200 of that
balance, dated Quebec, 21 November
1825.

Quebec
15 Nov.  1825

John Bell William Bell Cession of every claim to profit or
otherwise in connection with the
building of a brig of 160 tons for
James Black.

Quebec
21 Nov.  1825

John Bell William Bell Receipt for £200 of the balance of
£690.11.8 owed by William Bell to
John Bell at the time of their settle-
ment of accounts, 25 October 1825.

Quebec
11 Jan.  1826

William Bell Charles A. Thiselton Asking if his pension for 31 December
1824 - 30 June 1825 has been paid by 
the Treasury to Thiselton and remitted to Dav
in Bell's letter of 19 July 1825.  Is sending th
requisition for his pension for 30 June 1825 -

Quebec
11 Jan.  1826

William Bell David Inglis,
Merchant,
Dunfermline,
Scotland.
Brother of William
Bell's second wife,
Jessie

Has sent his pension requisition for 30 June -
the
Treasury.  Asks if Inglis has received his pen
1824 - 30 June 1825 from Thiselton.  If not, h
instruct the Treasury not to pay his pension u
directions are received.  Provides draft of a le



Quebec
21 June  1826

William Bell Account current between John Bell and his b
Includes notes of £65 received by William B
John Bell's behalf to their brother George Be
a mortgage; and of £10 paid by John Bell on 
to Christiana Reed, sister of Angus
McDonald.

Quebec
21 June  1826

William Bell John Bell Itemized account of John Bell's debt to William Bel
account current above, for stores left in John Bell's y

Quebec
31 July  1826

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Has sent the Treasury his pension
requisition for 31 December 1825 - 30
June 1826.  Mr. Inglis has received the pension for 3
30 June 1825.  Hopes that payments will be
regularly made from 30 June 1825 - 31
December 1825.  Bell is currently engaged in settlin
his brother.

Quebec
16 Aug.  1826

William Bell David Inglis Instruction to give £15 to Mrs. Miller, Kirkcaldy, an
account.  Is doing nothing at present, as his brother 
again.

Quebec
21 Sept. 1826

William Bell L.T.
McPherson,
Notary Public

Acknowledges receipt of his letter of 20 September 
enclosed statement of account between John Bell an
account contains errors and is also out of date.  Refe
accounts current between his brother and himself sta
October 1825.

Quebec
18 Nov.  1816
        (sic)

William Bell [David Inglis] Instructions regarding Bell's pension for 30 June - 3
December 1825 - 30 June 1826, and 30
June - 31 December 1826.  Comments
and greetings to friends and relatives.  Order for two
Dr. Watts' Psalms and Hymns.



Quebec
18 Nov.  1826

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Regarding non-receipt of his pension for 30 June - 3
and 31 December 1825 - 30 June 1826.  Has
drawn bills on Thiselton for them and will do the sa
months after payment is due.

Quebec
23 Jan. 1827

William Bell William
Budden

Regarding 2 vessels that Bell had built for Budden a
last year.  Bell does not know what repairs the OTH
required
previous to her voyage to India, and is not responsib
Budden's friends may have incurred in fitting her ou

Quebec
27 Jan.  1827

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Has sent the Treasury his pension
requisition for 30 June - 31 December
1826.  Inglis has received the payment for 30 June -
and Bell has drawn bills on Thiselton for the payme
1825 - 31
December 1826.

Quebec
27 Jan.  1827

William Bell David Inglis Pension arrangements as above.  Farm news of [Dav
William.
Bell is purchasing a farm in the name of his brother
which he may take over from Bell if he wishes with
lods et vente of about £100.

Quebec
 1 March 1827

William Bell,
Shipbuilder,
c/o John Miller,
Grocer, Lower
Town, Quebec

David Inglis Death of Inglis' father.  Regrets that Inglis has lent m
John Bell and gives a long account of his own finan
him.  Asks for a power of attorney so that he can ac
Details of his purchase of the farm bought in
James Inglis' name.  Order for clothes for himself an

Quebec
 3 March 1827

William Bell A. Gugy,
Advocate

John Bell's debt to David Inglis is in sterling and ex
calculated as well as interest to the time of payment



Quebec
 9 March 1827

William Bell L.T.
McPherson,
Notary Public

Returning his letter and enclosure of
8 March.  As stated in his letter of 21 September 18
settlement of 25 October 1825 between himself and
and conclusive.

Quebec
27 March 1827

William Bell A. Gugy Claim of David Inglis on John Bell.  Copy of accou
the circumstances of John Bell's
indebtedness, sent to Gugy for court purposes.

Quebec
26 April 1827

William Bell Memorandum regarding his receipt of money from J
David Inglis, with account of related charges.

Quebec
19 May   1827

William Bell David Inglis Enclosing bill for £220 recovered for
Inglis from his brother John Bell.
Account of the steps he has taken to recover the rest
account of the farm he has purchased in the name of
Encourages other members of the
Inglis family to emigrate to Canada or to visit it.

Quebec
21 May   1827

William Bell David Inglis Account of his proceedings on behalf of Inglis to re
him by John Bell.  Also other business, news of his 

Quebec
29 May   1827

William Bell A. Gugy Instructions to stop further
proceedings in the case of David
Inglis against John Bell until orders from David Ing

Quebec
31 July  1827

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

David Inglis has received his pension, 31 December
Queries the fees that have been
charged.  Has sent the Treasury his requisition for 3
June 1827.

Quebec, 1827
[After June and
before October]

William Bell David Inglis Discussing Inglis' case against John Bell and asking
instructions.



Quebec
 2 Oct.  1827

William Bell David Inglis Has received the clothes he ordered.  Will advertize
Discusses the suit to recover the money lent by Ingl
Encloses bill for pension, 31 December 1826 - 30 Ju
that the
deductions from the payments are back to their prop
news.  The reason for purchasing his farm,
Templehall, in the name of James Inglis instead of i
protect it from the action threatened by his
brother John Bell.

Quebec
20 Oct.  1827

William Bell David Inglis Inglis' case against John Bell settled in Inglis' favou
furious with his brother William that he is
suing him for payments that he has
already made.  Includes copies of the settlements ma
1816 when both returned to Scotland
and in 1825 when John Bell alone did.  Blames John
Second bill for his pension of 31
December 1826 - 30 June 1827 and
mention of the fees for its management by Thiselton
Purchased
his farm in James Inglis' name to
protect it from his brother John.

Quebec
 2 Dec.  1827

William Bell David Inglis Detailed report of the payments, costs, etc., in connec
against John Bell.  Arrangements to hire a good plou

Quebec
19 Jan.  1828

William Bell Messrs.
Stewart
& Black,
Bell's
lawyers

Sees no reason to consent to an
arbitration in the action brought
against him by his brother John Bell.  Requests partic
against him so that he may comment on them.

Quebec
23 Jan.  1828

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Arrangements regarding his pension for 30 June - 31
which he has sent his requisition to the
Treasury.



Quebec
 5 Feb.  1828

William Bell James
Gordon,
Amherstbur
g

Request to have the enclosed letter
given to Charles Usher, who has made
false accusations against Bell.  Plans to visit Amherst
when he will settle with Gordon for
his trouble.

Quebec
 5 Feb.  1828

William Bell Charles
Usher,
Amherstbur
g

Rejecting his unfounded claims and
asking him to withdraw them.

with :

Quebec
 6 Feb.  1828

William Bell Affidavit stating that Bell has overpaid Charles Ushe
and
requesting surrender of his note of
hand.

n.d. Space left for text of Bell's
advertisement for Robert Anderson in
the Quebec Gazette and Official
Gazette.

Quebec
20 Feb.  1828

William Bell David Inglis Encloses bill for his pension, 30 June
- 31 December 1827.  Has drawn two
bills for £10 each on Inglis for Mrs.
Miller, Kirkcaldy, mother of John
Miller, grocer of Quebec.  His brother has still not be
forward his charge, but because of John's
action, William has decided to sue him for about £20
yard when William gave it up to him.  Mr. Plomondo
who had enabled Bell to win Inglis' case against his b
unfortunately died.  Mr.  Anderson has responded to 
Order for clothes and farm equipment.  Farm news.
Offers to pay passage for a visit from
one of his brothers-in-law.

Quebec
   June  1828

William Bell Messrs.
Stewart
& Black
&
James
Sewell

Discussing sundry items in John Bell's account of 24 Octo



Quebec
28 June  1828

William Bell David
Inglis

Orders clothes and farm equipment.
Description of his farm on the St.
Charles River.  Would willingly turn it over to James Ing
cost him, though it would sell for £5000.  Comments rega
his brother.  Has given John Miller a bill for £10, to be ch
account with Inglis.

Quebec
31 July  1828

William Bell Charles
A.
Thiselto
n

Has sent the Treasury his pension
requisition for 31 December 1827 - 30 June 1828.  Regre
will be leaving Canada.

Quebec
 7 Nov.  1828

William Bell David
Inglis

Has written to the Treasury and to Mr. Thiselton regardin
December 1827 - 30 June 1828.  Reports arrival of the clo
from Inglis and the arrival of John Inglis with his family. 
take part with the Inglis brothers in financing the purchas
Inglis, who plans to spend the winter with Bell before goi
Farm news.  The Roman
Catholics are making a collection for O'Conor in Ireland.

Quebec
 7 Jan.  1829

William Bell Charles
A.
Thiselto
n

Has sent the Treasury his pension
requisition for 30 June - 31 December 1828.  Has again a
Thiselton a barrel of apples as a
present but it has been lost in the Gulf of St. Lawrence.

Quebec
 9 Jan.  1829

Rev.  James
Harkness

William
Bell

Regarding banns he has been asked to
proclaim for the marriage of Bell's
daughter Elizabeth to James Cullen.  Recommends Bell to
the sake of his daughter's
reputation unless he has good grounds for objecting.



Quebec
 9 Jan.  1829

William Bell Rev.
James
Harknes
s

Will never give his consent to the marriage of his daughte
James Cullen.  Since she has twice left his house and rem
charge, he leaves her entirely to her own will. 

Quebec
18 Feb.  1829

William Bell David
Inglis

Clothes and farm equipment ordered from Inglis have bee
John Inglis has taken a farm near
Montreal to which he will move in the spring.  Orders clo
requisition for his pension, 30 June -
31 December 1828.  "I am Sorrow to
say my daughter Elizabeth run off and got married to a se
ago."

Quebec
[1]4 April 1829

William Bell Messrs.
Stewart
& Black

Regarding his brother John Bell's
charges against him.  Wishes to stand firm on his settleme
1825.  Requests that they will move that the case either be
term or dismissed.

Quebec
 7 July  1829

William Bell David
Inglis

Has arranged for Mrs. Young [wife of Captain Young of 
to smuggle some tea as a gift to [his mother-in-law] Mrs. 
Templehall.  Has sent the Treasury his pension requisition
1828 - 30 June 1829.  Farm news.  Has drawn two bills o
on behalf of Mr. Miller.  Is worried because he has had no
his family this year.

Quebec
 7 July 1829

William Bell Charles
A.
Thiselto
n

Is sending the Treasury his pension requisition for 31 Dec
- 30 June 1829.  Hopes soon to have done with his brothe
standing.



Quebec
 9 Oct.  1829

William Bell Messrs.
Stewart
& Black

Instructing them to insist that his brother John Bell either 
settlement of 24 October 1825 or prove it to be a false set
forgery.  Requires the opinion of the judges before he wil
examination of witness previous to that settlement.  Requ
against his brother for the balance of accounts in his favo

Quebec
20 Nov.  1829

William Bell Charles
A.
Thiselto
n

Has sent Thiselton a barrel of apples on the BRITISH SO
present.

Quebec
20 Nov.  1829

William Bell David
Inglis

Has received his letters and shipment of clothes.  Desires 
Empire to be replaced by a Christian kingdom.  News of J
Inglis.  Case with his brother John Bell is still at a standst
Pension, 31 December 1828 - 30 June 1829.

Quebec
 7 Jan.  1830

William Bell David
Inglis

Farm news and market prices.  Order for clothes.  Pension
31 December 1829.  Will no longer bother to send him bi
Thiselton for his pension, since he pays it without them.

Quebec
 7 Jan.  1830

William Bell Charles
A.
Thiselto
n

Arrangements regarding his pension, 31 December 1828 
Hopes that the barrel of apples Bell sent has been more fo
and has arrived safely.

Quebec
22 Feb.  1830

William Bell Messrs.
Stewart
& Black

Listing the papers relating to his case against his brothe
them and which he instructs them to deliver to Mr. Am

Quebec
23 March 1830

William Bell J.N.
Amiot,
[Advocate
]

Stating his objections to the two arbitrators proposed fo
dispute with his brother John Bell.



Quebec
23 March 1830

William Bell Narcisse
Amiot,
[Advocate
]

Giving an account of his dispute with Donald Fraser (o
arbitrators objected to above) over 
Fraser's guarantee of payment for
grazing supplied by Bell to his brother, the late Francis

Quebec
26 March 1830

William Bell N. Amiot Instructing him to cancel the
arbitration arrangement agreed to,
contrary to his written instructions, by his former lawye
Stewart.  Insists that his case is to be settled in court.

Quebec
 9 April 1830

William Bell J.N.
Amiot

Expresses dissatisfaction that the
judges have left his case to be settled by arbitration and
wishes regarding the arbitrators to be appointed.

Quebec
29 May   1830

William Bell Narcisse
Amiot

Regarding evidence to be taken from John Gerrar, his l
in connection with his case against his brother, John Be

Quebec
18 June  1830

William Bell The
Honourabl
e
Judges

Complaining of his brother's procrasti-
nation and asking them either to
appoint an arbitrator to act for his brother or to throw th

Quebec
30 June  1830

William Bell David
Inglis

Has received the clothes ordered.
Arrangements regarding his pension.  Family and farmi
John has at last appointed his
arbitrator.  Arrangements for the support of George Bel
for by himself and other relatives.

Quebec
 7 July  1830

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Pension, 31 December 1829 - 30 June 1830.  Arrival of
Promises to send him a present of
apples.

Quebec
14 Oct.  1830

William Bell Narcisse
Amiot

Since two arbitrators appointed by his brother have dec
should press the judges to take steps to prevent any furt



Quebec
28 Oct.  1830

William Bell David
Inglis

Gives instructions regarding his son John, whom he ha
Scotland to learn farming, a trade, or the business of a m
brother John has been given until 1 January 1831 to ob
award, or his case will be thrown out of court.

Quebec
28 Oct.  1830

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Is sending him a present of a barrel of apples.

Quebec
21 Nov.  1830

William Bell David
Inglis

Orders for farm equipment and clothes.  Gives news of

Quebec
29 Nov.  1830

William Bell William
Hands,
Treasurer,
Western
District,
U.C.

Listing his lands in Essex County and asking what he m
taxes and assessments.

Quebec
11 Dec.  1830

William Bell Hon. John
Stewart,
Land
Commissi
oner

Asking for a grant of land near Quebec on which he can
families.

Quebec
30 Dec.  1830

William Bell J.N.
Amiot

Asking him to move that his brother's case against him 
costs if no report by the arbitrators is filed by 1 January

Quebec
30 Dec.  1830

William Bell J.N.
Amiot

Asking if the judgement of 16 October 1830 was served

Quebec
 8 Jan.  1831

William Bell Adiel
Sherwood,
Land
Treasurer,
Brockville
, U.C.

Regarding payment of the taxes for his lands in South C

Quebec
17 Jan.  1831

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Regarding his pension, 30 June - 31 December 1830 an
December 1829.  Hopes that he has
received the barrel of apples.



Quebec
17 Jan.  1831

William Bell David
Inglis

Agrees that his son John should study mill work before
Taxes on his lands in Upper Canada.  His pension, 31 D
December 1830.  Additions to his order for farm equipm

Quebec
 1 Feb.  1831

William Bell J. Narcisse
Amiot

Asking him to move that his brother's case against him 
costs because of his delay in
proceeding, etc.

Quebec
 1 Feb.  1831

William Bell The
Honourabl
e
Judges

Request that his brother's action be dismissed with cost
failure to proceed with it after three years.

Quebec
15 March 1831

William Bell William
Hands,
Treasurer,
Western
District,
Upper
Canada

Listing his lands in Essex County and asking what he o
and assessments.

[Quebec]
   April 1831

William Bell Note regarding the settlement of the case of John Bell v
No. 1325.  And the case of Amiot, No. 984.

Quebec
17 May   1831

William Bell L.T.
McPherso
n

Asking McPherson to submit the deed he has prepared 
Bell's lawyer, Mr. Amiot.

Quebec
19 July  1831

William Bell David
Inglis

Has received the goods ordered from Inglis.  Arrangem
John.  Farming and business news.
Pension, 31 December 1830 - 30 June 1831.

Quebec
19 July  1831

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Pension, 31 December 1830 - 30 June 1831.

Quebec
15 Sept, 1831

William Bell N. Amiot,
Advocate,
Quebec

Arrangements regarding Amiot's fee in connection with
Bell.



Quebec
17 Sept. 1831

William Bell David
Inglis

Agrees to his son, John Bell, attending the academy at P
Gives news of John Inglis.  Is about to leave for Amher

Quebec
28 Oct.  1831

William Bell David
Inglis

News of John Inglis.  Bell's plans for visiting his lands 
purchasing lands in Lower Canada.
Prices.  Has arranged for some tea to be smuggled to In
Hopes his son John will soon be
returning to Canada.

Quebec
14 Nov.  1831

William Bell Robert
Reynolds,
Amherstb
urg

Asks as a favour that Reynolds will find out the amoun
Bell's lands at Amherstburg.  Bell does not know what 
Angus McDonald the tanner, who used to act as his age
River St. Clair and Bell's letters to Mr. Hands, the treas
District, have not been answered.

Quebec
14 Nov. 1831

William Bell David
Inglis

Prices and farming news.  Order for goods and clothes.
return to Canada in the spring if he does not intend to g
Academy after all.

Quebec
17 Nov.  1831

William Bell William
Hands,
Treasurer,
Western
District,
U.C.

Listing his lands and asking for the third time what the 
to.

Quebec
 9 Jan.  1832

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Pension, 30 June - 31 December 1831.
Since Thiselton does not wish Bell to send him any mo
he would like instead for a present, and David Inglis' L
obtain it for him.

Quebec
21 Jan.  1832

William Bell William
Hands,
Sandwich,
U.C.

Regarding Bell's land taxes.  Asks
Hands to try to get him back his lot
in Colchester, sold for non-payment of taxes.



Quebec
24 Jan.  1832

William Bell David
Inglis

Note regarding a letter written
concerning John Inglis' new farm.

Quebec
24 Jan.  1832

William Bell David
Inglis

Politics.  Adds to his order for clothes and other items. 
the payment of taxes for his lands in Upper Canada.  Pe
December 1831.  A gift for Mr. Thisel-
ton.  Enquires about his son John's progress.

Quebec
24 Feb.  1832

William Bell Robert
Reynolds

Asks Reynolds to act for him in trying to repurchase hi
sold for non-payment of taxes.

Quebec
27 Feb.  1832

William Bell Adriel
Shearwoo
d,
Land
Treasurer,
Brockville
, U.C.

Payment of taxes for his lands in South Crosby Townsh

Quebec
28 Feb.  1832

William Bell William
Hands,
Land
Treasurer,
Sandwich,
U.C.

Payment of his land and road assess-
ment taxes in the Western District of Upper Canada.

Quebec
 9 April 1832

William Bell Adriel
Sherwood

Error in the receipt for his taxes relating to his lands in 
Township.

[Quebec]
 9 May   1832

William Bell Mr. Greer Arrangements regarding a debt to be paid to Bell by Gr

Quebec
21 June  1832

William Bell Rodger
Dean &
Co.

Enquiring if they have received a box of clothing sent t
WELLINGTON, which was wrecked.

Quebec
 7 July  1832

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Pension, 31 December 1831 - 30 June
1832.  Cholera is raging in both Quebec and Upper Can



Quebec
 9 July  1832

William Bell John
Young,
Captain,
Brig
WELLIN
GTON

Understands that Young has shipped him a box of cloth
brig WELLINGTON after it was wrecked at Cap Rosur
know where he may receive it.

Quebec
11 July  1832

John Young,
Captain, Brig
WELLINGTON

William
Bell

Fears that Bell's box of clothing has been lost, but will 
possible to try to find it.

Quebec
13 July  1832

William Bell David
Inglis

Cholera is severe in both Lower and Upper Canada and
ing all immigrants from Canada,
although the epidemic is also rampant in New York.  H
goods that Inglis said he had shipped on the TRITON, b
actually sent by the brig WELLINGTON, which was w
insurance and includes copies of his correspondence wi
above.  Will need copies of the
accounts included by Inglis in the lost box.  Considers t
quite enough education if he intends to become a farme
profession.  Pension, 31 December 1831 - 30 June 1832

Quebec
31 July  1832

William Bell William
Hands

Payment of the taxes and road assess-ments on his land
District of Upper Canada.

Quebec
 4 Nov.  1832

William Bell David
Inglis

The goods sent by Inglis were saved from the wreck of
brig, but then lost through
mismanagement.  Is sending Inglis a power of attorney 
James to sign and send back with Bell's son John next s
arrange for the land he had bought in James Inglis' nam
his own name.  Farm news.



Quebec 
 4 Nov.  1832

William Bell James
Inglis

Asking him to sign the power of
attorney sent to his brother David
Inglis, so that the property bought by Bell in the name o
now be transferred into Bell's own
name.

Quebec
16 Nov.  1832

William Bell David
Inglis

Order for clothes and other items.  Explains that the po
signed by James Inglis will enable Bell to transfer the p
name with less expense than any other method.  Farm n
ions for his son John's voyage home.

River St.
Charles
 2 Jan.  1833

William Bell       ? Explains his financial situation and why he cannot at pr
his correspondent, but will let him know when he can.

Quebec
 7 Jan.  1833

William Bell Charles A.
Thiselton

Pension, 30 June - 31 December 1832.  Asks for a state

Quebec
16 Jan.  1833

William Bell David
Inglis

Death of David Inglis' mother. Busi-
ness regarding proposed purchase by Bell of 500 acres.  
goods lost when the brig WELLINGTON was wrecked, 
goods he orders in future to be insured.   Pension receipt
Messrs. Cockburn & Co.,London, etc.  Power of attorne
James Inglis.  Farm news. Son John may stay in
Scotland to study for a profession if he wishes, but if not
Canada next spring.

Little River
25 Jan.  1833

William Bell Paul
Vermette,
Côte
Labraw,
Quebec

Requesting payment of his note, which has become due.



Quebec
29 Jan.  1833

William Bell David
Inglis

Mr. Thiselton has retired from
Cockburn Bankers because of ill health, but has not noti
wishes to give up acting as his agent for
handling his pension payments.  Asks Inglis to find out w
him.  Hopes his son John will be returning home next sp
the treatment of cholera.

Quebec
13 April 1833

William Bell William
Miller,
Schoolma
ster

Mentions his purchases of land and
regrets that these make it impossible at present for Bell t
Miller's request.

Quebec
13 April 1833

William Bell Robert
Reynolds

Mentions his purchases of land and
regrets that these make it impossible at present for Bell t
Reynolds' request.

Quebec
10 May   1833

William Bell David
Inglis

Financial business in connection with his purchase of tw
to 30 June 1833.

Quebec
11 May   1833

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.,
Bankers,
Whitehall,
London,
England

Pension up to 30 June 1833.  Hopes that Mr. Thiselton w

Quebec
13 June  1833

William Bell David
Inglis

His son John has returned safely.
Thinks him still too young to be put in charge of his own
pride.  Financial matters relating to his purchases of prop
Cockburn & Co. are to act as his
London agents for receiving his pension
payments.  Immigration into Upper
Canada.  Farming news. 

Quebec
15 July  1833

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Pension, 31 December 1832 - 31
December 1833.

Quebec
23 Sept. 1833

William Bell David
Inglis

Business.  Does not intend to buy any more land.  Son Jo
property in Upper Canada.



Quebec
12 Nov.  1833

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Pension, 31 December 1831 - 30
September 1833.

Quebec
12 Nov.  1833

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Pension, 31 December 1831 - 30
September 1833.  Will replace receipts that have been lo

Quebec
29 Dec.  1833

William Bell David
Inglis

Pension to 30 September 1833.  Pension
payment dates have been altered, which will cause some
Will buy no more land, since he already has more than h
four farms around Quebec, besides his lands in Upper C
children, Elizabeth and John.  Order for goods and cloth

Quebec
 7 April 1834

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Pension, 30 September 1833 - 31 March 1834.

Quebec
 8 May   1834

William Bell F.J.
Parrent

Asking him to pay the rest of his
mother's note for the money Bell lent her, as he is in nee

Quebec
27 May   1834

William Bell Jacques
Drolate

Informing him that after 7 June 1834 Bell will protest th
Phillipe Drolet.

Quebec
28 May   1834

William Bell F.J.
Parrant

Asking for £10 or £12 out of his
mother's note for Bell's immediate
needs.  He can wait for the rest until 1 July, when he wil
cutting and harvesting of his crop.

Quebec
 3 June  1834

William Bell David
Inglis

Immigration in Upper and Lower
Canada.  Agriculture.  The giving of credit by merchants
goods he ordered from Inglis.  Pension, 30 September 18
Promises to help Inglis' son find a suitable place if he co

Quebec
 7 Oct.  1834

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Pension, 31 March - 30 September 1834.

Quebec
27 Oct.  1834

William Bell Elizabeth
Cullen,

Business regarding Bell's lands in Upper Canada.



Amherstb
urg
[Bell's
daughter]

Quebec
30 Oct.  1834

William Bell David
Inglis

Order for clothes.  Support for George Bell.  Elections a

Quebec
31 Dec.  1834

William Bell Elizabeth
Bell
[Cullen],
Amherstb
urg

Business regarding Bell's lands in Upper Canada.

Quebec
31 Dec.  1834

William Bell Adiel
Sherwood,
Land
Treasurer,
Brockville
, U.C.

Paying the land and road taxes for his land in South Cro

Quebec
24 Jan.  1835

William Bell Elizabeth
[Bell
Cullen,
Amherstb
urg]

Instructions regarding Bell's land and taxes in Upper Can

Quebec
26 Feb.  1835

William Bell Adiel
Sherwood

Land and road taxes for Bell's property in South Crosby 

Quebec
 3 March 1835

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Pension, 30 September 1834 - 31 March 1835.  Expresse
return to active service at any of the shipyards in Upper 
required by the Government.

with :

Quebec
 3 March 1835

William Bell Affidavit declaring that he is entitled to his pension as re
Shipwright at Kingston, Upper Canada.

and :



Quebec
 3 March 1835

William Bell George
Cockburn
&
Benjamin
Williams,
Bankers,
Whitehall,
London,
England

Power of attorney authorizing them to receive his pensio
any other funds due to him from the Treasury, Paymaste

Quebec
 1 April 1835

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Transmitting affidavits, duly signed by a magistrate, for 
- 30 September 1834, and 30 September 1834 - 31 Marc

Quebec
27 April 1835

[William Bell]        ? Requesting his correspondent to put up his part of the fe
properties, at the [gradsare] by Quebec.

Quebec
18 Aug.  1835

William Bell David
Inglis

Clothes received.  Change in the form of pension payme
Has drawn bills of exchange on Inglis.  Son John Bell is
grocery of J. & William Roy in Montreal, with hours fro
News of John Inglis.

Quebec
 1 Oct.  1835

William Bell Affidavit declaring that he is entitled to his pension as re
wright at Kingston, Upper Canada.

Quebec
 1 Oct.  1835

William Bell Secretary
of H.M.
Treasury,
London

Pension requisition.

Quebec
20 Oct.  1835

William Bell J. & Wm.
Roy,
Merchants
,
Montreal

Receipt for a cheque in full payment of Bell's bill of exc
Inglis of Dunfermline.

Quebec
22 Oct.  1835

William Bell David
Inglis

Arrangements regarding his pension payments.  Has dra
favour of J. & Wm. Roy of Montreal.  Account of a jour
which included a visit to Amherstburg, and to John Ingli



Quebec
31 Oct.  1835

William Bell Robert
Reynolds,
Amherstb
urg

Regrets that he cannot make Reynolds a loan, since he h
collect the debts owed to himself.

Quebec
 3 Nov.  1835

[12 Nov. 1835]

William Bell Gustavus
Arvison,
Amherstb
urg

Gives an account of his trip to Upper Canada.  In Toront
Arvison's letter to the Governor's Secretary of State.  As
Mr. Natson that he should apply to Mr. Ebenezer Reyno
in the Yard, for information regarding pay.  Notes that h
Arvison's letter about the cutting of cedar by the Americ
York, Upper Canada, on 12 November 1835.

Quebec
17 Nov.  1835

William Bell Edward
Oates,
South
Crosby,
Rideau
Canal,
Upper
Canada

Regarding possible thefts of timber from Bell's land (lot 
and lots 6, 7, and 8 in Concession 10) in South Crosby T

Quebec
17 Nov.  1835

William Bell Hew
Brown,
South
Crosby,
[John's]
Falls,
Rideau
Canal,
Upper
Canada

Regarding possible thefts of timber from Bell's land (lot 
and lots 6, 7, and 8 in Concession 10) in South Crosby T

Quebec
 2 Dec,  1835

William Bell J. & Wm.
Roy &
Co.,
Merchants
,
Montreal

Paying a bill for 10 gallons of brandy.  Sends 1/9 for his

Toronto
 5 Jan.  1836

George H. Markland
([1790]-1862),
Inspector General

Lachlan
McDonell,
Cornwall, 

Shop Licence for 1836.



Upper
Canada

Quebec
19 Jan.  1836

William Bell J. & Wm.
Roy &
Co.

Hopes that his letter of 2 December 1835 and the sum en
his bill for brandy has been duly received.  Asks how his
on in his employment.

Little River,
Quebec
15 Feb.  1836

William Bell Captain
Robert
Young,
Trinity
House,
Quebec

Regrets that he cannot make Young a loan, since he can 
debts owing to him nor sell anything in the market witho

Quebec
 1 April 1836

William Bell Secretary
of H.M.
Treasury,
London

Pension requisition.

Quebec
 1 April 1836

William Bell Affidavit declaring that he is entitled to his pension as re
wright at Kingston, Upper Canada.

Quebec
 1 April 1836

William Bell Cockburn
& Co.

Enclosing the above certificate for his pension, 30 Septe
1836.  Offers to collect the debt owed them by Mr. Davi
has not paid it yet.  Remarks that the fashion of this coun
paying debts as long as possible.

Quebec
 6 April 1836

William Bell John Bell
(his son),
Montreal

Business.  Advice on his career.
Recommends him not to leave his
employment with J. & Wm. Roy in
Montreal.  If he does, asks him to
keep in touch by post at all times.

31 Dec.  1824 -30
Sept. 1836

William Bell Memorandum of pension payments received.

Quebec
16 Nov.  1836

William Bell James
Inglis

Copy of letter sent to request a power of attorney to enab
land he had purchased in Inglis' name.  Mentions "the th
Canadiens French who wish to drive us from the Countr
our noble Kieng."



Quebec
 9 June 1838

John Bell,
son of William Bell

[David
Inglis]

Stating the financial position between them.  Encloses pr
Bell's will and a power of attorney.



Dates

Admiralty
London, England

18 Feb.  1817
14 May   1817

Agricultural Education 28 Oct.  1830
17 Jan.  1831
13 July  1832

Agricultural Labourers 2 Dec.  1827

Agricultural Products - Price 20 Nov.  1829
 7 Jan.  1830
28 Oct.  1831
14 Nov.  1831

Agriculture - Lower Canada  2 Oct.  1827
 2 Dec.  1827
28 June  1828
 7 Nov.  1828
 7 July  1829
 7 Jan.  1830
30 June  1830
19 July  1831
14 Nov.  1831
 4 Nov.  1832
16 Nov.  1832
16 Jan.  1833
13 June  1833
28 May   1834
 3 June  1834



Amherstburg, Ont. 22 July  1810
14 June  1811
22 July  1811
 3 Oct.  1811
18 Jan.  1812
 6 May   1812
23 May   1817
30 Dec.  1817
10 June  1818
 9 Oct.  1818
27 Nov.  1818
 3 April 1819
20 July  1819
 1 Feb.  1821
14 Nov.  1831
27 Oct.  1834
31 Dec.  1834
24 Jan.  1835
22 Oct.  1835
3-12 Nov.1835

Amiot, J. Narcisse
Quebec Advocate

22 Feb.  1830
23 March 1830
23 March 1830
26 March 1830
 9 April 1830
29 May   1830
14 Oct.  1830
30 Dec.  1830
30 Dec.  1830
 1 Feb.  1831
   April 1831

17 May   1831
15 Sept. 1831

Anderson, Robert
Quebec

 2 Oct.  1827
         n.d.
20 Feb.  1828
21 Nov.  1830

ANTOINETTE, brig 20 Nov.  1820

Apples - Quebec  7 Jan.  1829
20 Nov.  1829
 7 Jan.  1830
 7 July  1830
28 Oct.  1830
 9 Jan.  1832



Arvison, Gustavus
Amherstburg, U.C.

3-12 Nov.1835

Baldwin, [H.]
Quebec

21 Dec.  1800

Barclay, Robert Heriot (fl. 1813-1815)
Senior Naval Officer on Lake Erie
H.M.S. QUEEN CHARLOTTE

 6 July  1813

Barrow, John (1764-1848)
Second Secretary of the Admiralty
London, England

21 Oct.  1814
31 Oct.  1815

Bathurst, Henry, third Earl Bathurst (1762-1834)
Secretary of State for War and Colonies
London, England

28 Jan.  1817
30 Jan.  1817
14 Feb.  1817
 7 Jan.  1818
 3 March 1818
13 June  1818

Bell, Mrs. ____
Wife of Master Shipwright William Bell
Kingston, U.C.

June - 
Sept.    1818

Bell, Ann
Daughter of Master Shipwright William Bell
Aberdour, Scotland

27 Nov.  1818

Bell, Elizabeth (fl. 1818-1835)
Daughter of Master Shipwright and Quebec Farmer William Bell
Wife of James Cullen
Amherstburg, U.C.

27 Nov.  1818
 9 Jan.  1829
 9 Jan.  1829
18 Feb.  1829
29 Dec.  1833
27 Oct.  1834
31 Dec.  1834
24 Jan.  1835

Bell, Elizabeth (née Grieg) (d. 1835)
2nd Wife of shipwright John Bell (1779-1841)
Quebec, L.C.

20 Oct.  1827

Bell, George (fl. 1826-1834)
Lunatic brother of shipwrights William and John Bell, Quebec
  [Aberdour], Scotland

21 June  1826
30 June  1830
30 Oct.  1834



Bell, Jessie (née Inglis)
Wife of shipwright and farmer William Bell (1777-1837)
Quebec, L.C.

 1 March 1827
16 Jan.  1833

Bell, John (1779-1841)
Quebec Shipwright

20 Jan.  1806
18 Jan.  1812
11 Oct.  1816
14 May   1817
23 May   1817
10 Oct.  1817
20 July  1819

Bell, John (1779-1841) (cont.)
Quebec Shipwright

20 Nov.  1820
22 June -
15 Nov.  1825
25 Oct. -
21 Nov.  1825
21 June  1826
21 June  1826
31 July  1826
16 Aug.  1826
21 Sept. 1826
 1 March 1827
 3 March 1827
 9 March 1827
27 March 1827
26 April 1827
19 May   1827
21 May   1827
29 May   1827
ante-Oct.1827
 2 Oct.  1827
20 Oct.  1827
 2 Dec.  1827
19 Jan.  1828
20 Feb.  1828
   June  1828
28 June  1828
[1]4 Apr.1829
 7 July  1829
 9 Oct.  1829
20 Nov.  1829
22 Feb.  1830
23 March 1830
23 March 1830
26 March 1830
 9 April 1830
29 May   1830



Bell, John (1779-1841) (cont.)
  Quebec Shipwright

18 June  1830
30 June  1830
14 Oct.  1830
28 Oct.  1830
30 Dec.  1830
30 Dec.  1830
 1 Feb.  1831
 1 Feb.  1831
   April 1831

15 Sept. 1831

Bell, John (fl. 1830-1838)
Son of shipwright and farmer William Bell of Quebec

28 Oct.  1830
17 Jan.  1831
19 July  1831
17 Sept. 1831
28 Oct.  1831
14 Nov.  1831
24 Jan.  1832
13 July  1832
 4 Nov.  1832
16 Nov.  1832
16 Jan.  1833
29 Jan.  1833
13 June  1833
23 Sept. 1833
29 Dec.  1833
18 Aug.  1835
 2 Dec.  1835
19 Jan.  1836
 6 April 1836
 9 June  1838

Black & Stewart, Messrs.
Quebec lawyers

19 Jan.  1828
   June  1828
[1]4 Apr.1829
 9 Oct.  1829
22 Feb.  1830
26 March 1830

Black, James
Quebec, L.C.

22 June -
15 Nov.  1825

BRITISH SOVEREIGN, vessel 20 Nov.  1829

Broughton, Charles R.
[London Banker, England]

20 Nov.  1820



Brown, Hew
South Crosby, [John's ] Falls, Rideau Canal, Upper Canada

17 Nov.  1835

Buchan, E.W.
Amherstburg, U.C.

         n.d.

Budden, William
  Client of shipwright William Bell of Quebec

23 Jan.  1827

Caddy, John Thomas (fl. 1801-1827)
Captain and Brevet Major, Royal Artillery
Quebec, L.C.

30 July  1814

Catholics  7 Nov.  1828

Cedar 3-12 Nov.1835

Cholera  7 July  1832
29 Jan.  1833

Cholera Epidemic 13 July  1832

Cockburn & Co.
Bankers
London, England

16 Jan.  1833
29 Jan.  1833
11 May   1833
13 June  1833
15 July  1833
12 Nov.  1833
12 Nov.  1833
 7 April 1834
 7 Oct.  1834
 3 March 1835
 1 April 1835
 1 April 1836

Cockburn, George
Banker
London, England

 3 March 1835

Colchester, Ont. 21 Jan.  1832
24 Feb.  1832

COLIBRI, brig 28 June  1815
10 July  1815
13 July  1815



Colonial Office
London, England

 3 Jan.  1817
28 Jan.  1817
30 Jan.  1817
 8 Feb.  1817
10 Feb.  1817
14 Feb.  1817
14 Feb.  1817
18 Feb.  1817
26 Feb.  1817
27 Feb.  1817

14 May   1817
 7 Jan.  1818
 3 March 1818
[10 June 1818]
13 June  1818
13 June  1818
13 July  1818

Commissariat June-Sep.1815

Cowan, Lieut. David (d. 1808)
Provincial Marine Department, Lake Erie
Amherstburg, U.C.

22 July  1810
 4 Sept. 1815
 6 Oct.  1815
14 May   1817
23 May   1817

Cowan, John
Brother of Lieut. David Cowan (q.v.)
Amherstburg, U.C. and Dunfermline, Scotland

26 Feb.  1817
23 May   1817
20 Feb.  1818
20 Feb.  1818

Craigie, Hon. John (fl. 1788-1811)
Deputy Commissary General and Store Keeper General
Quebec

20 Jan.  1806
20 Jan.  1807
19 March 1807

Croker, John Wilson (1780-1857)
Secretary of the Admiralty
London, England

17 Sept. 1815
18 Sept. 1815
14 May   1817

Cullen, Elizabeth (fl. 1818-1835)
Wife of James Cullen
Daughter of Master Shipwright and Quebec Farmer William Bell
Amherstburg, U.C.

27 Nov.  1818
 9 Jan.  1829
 9 Jan.  1829
18 Feb.  1829
29 Dec.  1833
27 Oct.  1834
31 Dec.  1834
24 Jan.  1835



Cullen, James
Servant and son-in-law of shipwright and farmer William Bell
Quebec

 9 Jan.  1829
 9 Jan.  1829
18 Feb.  1829

Curry, Major [William Samuel (fl. 1783-1811)]
Deputy Quartermaster General
York, U.C.

28 Nov.  1804

Dalhousie, George Ramsay, 9th Earl of (1770-1838)
Governor-in-chief of Canada, 1819-1828

31 July  1828

David, David
Montreal, L.C.

 8 July  1809
22 Sept. 1809
 1 Aug.  1810
 7 Sept. 1811
26 Nov.  1811
25 April 1812

Davidson, James
Three Rivers, L.C.

15 Sept. 1811

Davison, Mr. ____
Quebec, L.C.

 1 April 1836

Dean & Co., Rodger
[Quebec]

21 June  1832

Debtors and Creditors  2 Jan.  1833
25 Jan.  1833
13 April 1833
13 April 1833
 8 May   1834
27 May   1834
28 May   1834
 3 June  1834
15 Feb.  1836
 1 April 1836



Dickson, William (1769-1846)
Attorney at Law
Niagara, U.C..

22 July  1810
14 June  1811
22 July  1811
 3 Oct.  1811
18 Jan.  1812
 4 Sept. 1815
 6 Oct.  1815
14 May   1817
23 May   1817
23 May   1817
28 May   1817
28 May   1817

Drolate, Jacques
[Quebec]

27 May   1834

Drolet, Phillipe
[Quebec] Farmer

27 May   1834

Education Abroad 28 Oct.  1830
17 Jan.  1831
13 July  1832
16 Jan.  1833

Education - Farming 28 Oct.  1830
17 Jan.  1831
13 July  1832

Elections - Lower Canada 30 Oct.  1834

Emigration and Immigration - Lower Canada  3 June  1834 

Emigration and Immigration - Upper Canada 13 June  1833
 3 June  1834

ERIE, H.H.S., schooner  6 July  1813

Farm Equipment 28 June  1828
21 Nov.  1830
17 Jan.  1831

Fences 27 April 1835



Foreign Office
London, England

24 June  1818

Fraser, Donald
Brother of the later Francis Fraser (q.v.)
Quebec

23 March 1830

Fraser, Francis
Late brother of Donald Fraser (q.v.)
Quebec

23 March 1830

Freer, Noah (fl. 1808-1818)
Military Secretary
Montreal, L.C.

18 July  1814
30 July  1814

French Canadians - Attitudes 16 Nov.  1836

French Canadians - Attitudes towards 16 Nov.  1836

Gerrar, John
Late foreman and clerk of shipwright William Bell
Quebec

29 May   1830

Gordon, James
Amherstburg, U.C.

 5 Feb.  1828

GOSHAWK, brig 28 June  1815
10 July  1815
13 July  1815

Goulburn, Henry (1784-1856)
Under-Secretary for War and Colonies
London, England

 8 Feb.  1817
10 Feb.  1817
18 Feb.  1817
27 Feb.  1817

13 July  1818

Great Britain.  Admiralty
London, England

18 Feb.  1817
14 May   1817

Great Britain.  Army.  Commissariat
London, England

June-Sep.1815

Great Britain.  Army - Troops - Victualling
London, England

 8 June  1772
11-17 Ju.1772



Great Britain. Colonial Office
London, England

 3 Jan.  1817
28 Jan.  1817
30 Jan.  1817
 8 Feb.  1817
10 Feb.  1817
14 Feb.  1817
14 Feb.  1817
18 Feb.  1817
26 Feb.  1817
27 Feb.  1817

14 May   1817
 7 Jan.  1818
 3 March 1818
[10 June 1818]
13 June  1818
13 June  1818
13 July  1818

Great Britain. Foreign Office
London, England

24 June  1818

Great Britain.  Navy Board
London, England

 1 Oct.  1816
24 Dec.  1816
 3 Jan.  1817
27 Jan.  1817
 8 Feb.  1817
10 Feb.  1817
28 April 1817
14 May   1817
22 June  1818

Great Britain.  Treasury
London, England

  (See also :  Pension 
             Pension Agents
             Pension Payments Memorandum
             Pension Requisitions)

 3 March 1818
13 June  1818
22 June  1818
30 June  1818
 2 July  1816 sic
13 July  1818
 1 July  1821
 1 Oct.  1835
 1 April 1836

Greer, Mr. ____
[Quebec]

 9 May   1832

Gugy, A.
Advocate
Quebec, L.C.

 3 March 1827
27 March 1827
29 May   1827



Hall, Sir Robert (fl. 1814-1817)
Acting Commissioner (later, Commissioner) to the Navy in 
Canada
Kingston, U.C.

         n.d.
28 June  1815
 5 July  1815
 1 Oct.  1816

Hamilton, William (1777-1859)
Under-Secretary for Foreign Affairs
London, England

24 June  1818

Hands, William
Land Treasurer for the Western District of Upper Canada
Sandwich, U.C.

29 Nov.  1830
15 March 1831
14 NOv.  1831
17 Nov.  1831
21 Jan.  1832
28 Feb.  1832
31 July  1832

Harkness, Rev. Dr. James (1789-1835)
Minister at St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, 1820-1835
Quebec, L.C.

 9 Jan.  1829
 9 Jan.  1829

HARMONY, brig
Captain Young

 7 July  1829

Harrison, George
Secretary to the Treasury
London, England

(See also :  Great Britain.  Treasury)

13 June  1818
22 June  1818
 2 July  1816 sic
13 July  1818
 1 July  1821

Harrower, David
Distiller
Quebec, L.C.

14 May   1817
23 May   1817
28 May   1817

Harrower, Robert
Quebec, L.C.

12 July  1800
 5 Feb.  1801

Hay, Jonathan
Bombardier, Royal Artillery
Montreal, L.C.

27 Jan.  1814

H.M.S. ERIE, schooner
Lake Erie, U.C.

 6 July  1813



H.M.S. LITTLE BELT, schooner 
Lake Erie, U.C.

 6 July  1813

H.M.S. QUEEN CHARLOTTE, vessel
Lake Erie, U.C.

 6 July  1813

Hymns 18 Nov. [1826]

Immigration and Emigration - Lower Canada  3 June  1834

Immigration and Emigration - Upper Canada 13 June  1833 
 3 June  1834

Inglis, Mrs. ____ [d. 1832]
Mother-in-law of Quebec shipwright and farmer William Bell
Templehall, Scotland

 7 July  1829
16 Jan.  1833

Inglis, David (fl. 1825-1838)
Merchant
Dunfermline, Scotland
Brother-in-law of Quebec shipwright and farmer William Bell

19 July  1825
11 Jan.  1826
11 Jan.  1826
31 July  1826
16 Aug.  1826
18 Nov. [1826]
27 Jan.  1827
27 Jan.  1827
 1 March 1827
 3 March 1827
27 March 1827
26 April 1827
19 May   1827



Inglis, David (fl. 1825-1838) (cont.)
Merchant
Dunfermline, Scotland
Brother-in-law of Quebec shipwright and farmer William Bell

21 May   1827
29 May   1827
31 July  1827
         1827
 2 Oct.  1827
20 Oct.  1827
 2 Dec.  1827
20 Feb.  1828
28 June  1828
 7 Nov.  1828
18 Feb.  1829
 7 July  1829
20 Nov.  1829
 7 Jan.  1830
30 June  1830
28 Oct.  1830
21 Nov.  1830
17 Jan.  1831
19 July  1831
17 Sept. 1831
28 Oct.  1831
14 Nov.  1831
 9 Jan.  1832
24 Jan.  1832
24 Jan.  1832
13 July  1832
 4 Nov.  1832
 4 Nov.  1832
16 Nov.  1832
16 Jan.  1833
29 Jan.  1833
10 May   1833
13 June  1833
23 Sept. 1833
29 Dec.  1833
 3 June  1834



30 Oct.  1834
18 Aug.  1835
20 Oct.  1835
22 Oct.  1835
 9 June  1838

44
46
46
46
49

Inglis, James (fl. 1827-1836)
Scotland
Brother of David, John and William Inglis (qq.v.)
Brother-in-law of Quebec shipwright and farmer William Bell

27 Jan.  1827
 1 March 1827
19 May   1827
 2 Oct.  1827
20 Oct.  1827
28 June  1828
 4 Nov.  1832
 4 Nov.  1832
16 Nov.  1832
16 Jan.  1833
16 Nov.  1836

Inglis, John (fl. 1828-1835)
Quebec Farmer
Brother of David, James and William Inglis (qq.v)
Brother-in-law of Quebec shipwright and farmer William Bell

 7 Nov.  1828
18 Feb.  1829
20 Nov.  1829
17 Sept. 1831
28 Oct.  1831
24 Jan.  1832
18 Aug.  1835
22 Oct.  1835

[Inglis], William
Scotland
[Brother of David, James and John Inglis (qq.v.)
   Brother-in-law of Quebec shipwright and farmer William Bell]

27 Jan.  1827

Insurance, Marine 13 July  1832
16 Jan.  1833

Inventory - Bell's Household Property at Amherstburg, U.C. 14 Feb.  1817

Judges - Quebec 18 June  1830
14 Oct.  1830
 1 Feb.  1831



Labery, William
Naval Dockyard Artificer, formerly at Amherstburg, U.C.
Kingston, U.C.

13 May   1814

Land Petition - Quebec 11 Dec.  1830

Lawrie, John
Gunner, Royal Artillery
St. Joseph's

31 Oct.  1807

Laws, Edward (fl. 1814-1818)
Naval Storekeeper
Kingston, U.C.

22 Oct.  1814
10 July  1815
13 July  1815
 1 Oct.  1816
23 Dec.  1816

Legge, H.
Member of the Navy Board
London, England

22 Oct.  1814
 3 Jan.  1817

Lernoult, Richard Berrenger (fl. 1756-1785)
Captain, 8th Regt.
Montreal, Que.

11-17June1772

LITTLE BELT, H.M.S., schooner
Lake Erie, U.C.

 6 July  1813

Loans  2 Jan.  1833
25 Jan.  1833
13 April 1833
13 April 1833
 8 May   1834
27 May   1834
28 May   1834
31 Oct.  1835
15 Feb.  1836



McDonald, Angus (fl. 1817-1821)
Tanner
Amherstburg, U.C.

10 Oct.  1817
30 Dec.  1817
20 Feb.  1818
22 May   1818
 9 Oct.  1818
27 Nov.  1818
 8 Dec.  1818
27 Dec.  1818
26 March 1819
 3 April 1819
20 July  1819
 1 Feb.  1821
21 June  1826
14 Nov.  1831

McDonell, Lachlan
[Shopkeeper]
Cornwall, U.C.

 5 Jan.  1836

McGregor, James
Sandwich, U.C.

29 Dec.  1811

McGregor, John
Sandwich, U.C.

29 Dec.  1811

MacKintosh, A.F.
Navy Office
London, England

28 April 1817

McPherson, L.T.
Notary Public
Quebec, L.C.

21 Sept. 1826
 9 March 1827
17 May   1831

Markland, George Herchmer ([1790]-1862)
Inspector General of Upper Canada

 5 Jan.  1836

Marks, J.
St. Lawrence

11 July  1815
15 July  1815

Mickle, Hannah
Amherstburg, U.C.

 6 June  1816

Miller, Mrs. _____
Mother of John Miller (q.v.), grocer of Quebec
Kirkcaldy, Scotland

16 Aug.  1826
20 Feb.  1828

Miller, Benjamin
Naval Dockyard Artificer, formerly at Amherstburg, U.C.
Kingston, U.C.

13 May   1814



Miller, John (fl. 1827-1829)
Grocer
Lower Town, Quebec, L.C.

See also :  Mrs. Miller, Kirkcaldy, Scotland

 1 March 1827
20 Feb.  1828
28 June  1828
 7 July  1829

Miller, William
Schoolmaster

13 April 1833

Moor, Robert (fl. 1816-1817)
Master Shipwright
Kingston, U.C.

 1 Oct.  1816
27 Jan.  1817

Murphy, Moses
Naval Dockyard Artificer, formerly at Amherstburg, U.C.
Kingston, U.C.

13 May   1814

Natson, Mr. ____
[Amherstburg, U.C.]

3-12 Nov.1835

Naval Yards - Amherstburg, U.C.          n.d.
10 June  1818
3-12 Nov.1835

Naval Yards - Kingston, U.C. 23 Dec.  1816
10 June  1818
3-12 Nov.1835

Navy Board
London, England

 1 Oct.  1816
24 Dec.  1816
 3 Jan.  1817
27 Jan.  1817
 8 Feb.  1817
10 Feb.  1817
28 April 1817
14 May   1817
22 June  1818

Neelson, R.A.
[R.H. Nelson (q.v.), Secretary of the Navy Board]
London, England

24 Dec.  1816

Nelson, R.H.
Secretary of the Navy Board
London, England

[See also :  R.A. Neelson]

27 Jan.  1817



Oates, Edward
South Crosby, Rideau Canal, U.C.

17 Nov.  1835

O'Conor, Richard (fl. 1813-1823)
Acting Commissioner
Naval Dockyard
Kingston, U.C.

18 July  1814
15 July  1815
12 March 1823
14 March 1823

OTHELLO, vessel 23 Jan.  1827

Owan, Capt. ____          n.d.

Owen, Capt. W.F.W.
Acting Commissioner of the Navy to Canada
Kingston Naval Yard, U.C.

23 Dec.  1816

Parkinson, J.
Corporal, Capt. R.B. Lernoult's Company, 8th Regt.
Montreal, Que.

11-17 June 1772

Parrant, F.J.
[Quebec]

(See also :  F.J. Parrent)

28 May   1834

Parrent, F.J.
[Quebec]

(See also :  F.J. Parrant)

 8 May   1834

Peake, H.
Member of the Navy Board
London, England

 3 Jan.  1817



Pension  1 July  1821
19 July  1825
11 Jan.  1826
31 July  1826
18 Nov.  1826
27 Jan.  1827
31 July  1827
20 Oct.  1827
23 Jan.  1828
20 Feb.  1828
31 July  1828
 7 Nov.  1828
 7 Jan.  1829
18 Feb.  1829
 7 July  1829
 7 July  1829
20 Nov.  1829
 7 Jan.  1830
 7 Jan.  1830
 7 July  1830
17 Jan.  1831
17 Jan.  1831
19
20
21
22
23
24
26
27
27
29
30
30
30
31
31
32
32
33
33
34
36
36



188
189
237
237-238
249
250-252
245
246-247
206
208
208
209-210
211
211-212
12 Nov.  1833
29 Dec.  1833
 7 April 1834
 3 June  1834
 7 Oct.  1834
 3 March 1835
 1 April 1835
18 Aug.  1835
 1 Oct.  1835
 1 Oct.  1835
22 Oct.  1835
 1 April 1836

Pension Agents 19 July  1825
11 Jan.  1826
31 July  1826
18 Nov.  1826
27 Jan.  1827
31 July  1827
20 Oct.  1827
23 Jan.  1828
31 July  1828
20
21
22
23
24
26
27
27
30



Pension Agents (cont.)  7 Nov.  1828
 7 Jan.  1829
 7 July  1829
20 Nov.  1829
 7 Jan.  1830
 7 Jan.  1830
 7 July  1830
28 Oct.  1830
17 Jan.  1831
19 July  1831
 9 Jan.  1832
24 Jan.  1832
 7 July  1832 
 7 Jan.  1833
16 Jan.  1833
29 Jan.  1833
11 May   1833
13 June  1833
15 July  1833
12 Nov.  1833
12 Nov.  1833
 7 April 1834
 7 Oct.  1834
 3 March 1835
 1 April 1835
 1 April 1836

Pension Payments Memorandum 31 Dec.  1824 -
30 Sept. 1836

Pension Requisitions  1 July  1821
 1 Oct.  1835
 1 April 1836

Plomondon, ____
Advocate
Quebec, L.C.

20 Feb.  1828

Procter, Major General Henry Adolphus (1787-1859)
Quebec, L.C.

30 July  1814

Quebec, L.C. 27 April 1835

QUEEN CHARLOTTE, H.M.S., vessel  6 July  1813



Ralph, ____
Master Sailmaker
Kingston Naval Yard, U.C.

   June -
   Sept. 1815

Reed, Christiana (fl. 1818-1821)
Widow of Matthew Reed (q.v.)
Sister of Angus McDonald (q.v.) of Amherstburg, U.C.

 8 Dec.  1818
27 Dec.  1818
 6 March 1819
26 March 1819
 3 April 1819
20 July  1819
 1 Feb.  1821
21 June  1826

Reed, Matthew [d. 1818]
Naval Shipwright
Husband of Christiana Reed (q.v.)
Montreal, L.C. [and Amherstburg, U.C.]

 5 July  1811
 6 July  1812
 8 Dec.  1818

Reynolds, Mr. ____
[Naval Dockyard, Kingston, U.C.]

15 July  1815

Reynolds, Ebenezer
[Naval Dockyard, Kingston, U.C.]

3-12 Nov.1835

Reynolds, Robert (fl.[1811]-1835)
[Son of Thomas Reynolds (q.v.)]
Amherstburg, U.C.

14 Nov.  1831
24 Feb.  1832
13 April 1833
31 Oct.  1835

Reynolds, Thomas (d. 1811)
Deputy Assistant Commisary General
Naval Storekeeper and Paymaster to the Provincial Marine
Amherstburg, U.C.

19 March 1807

Richardson, Dr. Robert
Amherstburg, U.C.

20 Feb.  1818
20 Feb.  1818

Rochat, J.
Quartermaster, 1st Battalion, 60th Regt.
Montreal, Que.

 8 June  1772

Rodger Dean & Co. 21 June  1832

Roman Catholics  7 Nov.  1828

ROSE MAKROON, brig          n.d.



Roy, J. & William, & Co., Messrs.
Merchants
Montreal, L.C.

18 Aug.  1835
20 Oct.  1835
22 Oct.  1835
 2 Dec.  1835
19 Jan.  1836
 6 April 1836

Roy, William, Messrs. J. &, & Co.
Merchants
Montreal, L.C.

18 Aug.  1835
20 Oct.  1835
22 Oct.  1835
 2 Dec.  1835
19 Jan.  1836
 6 April 1836

Seppings, Robert (1767-1840)
Surveyor of the Navy, 1813-1832
London, England

22 Oct.  1814
 3 Jan.  1817

Sewell, James
[Quebec Lawyer]

   June  1828

Shearwood, Adriel
Land Treasurer
Brockville, U.C.

(See also :  Adiel Sherwood)

27 Feb.  1832

Sherbrooke, Sir John Coape (1764-1830)
Governor-in-chief of Canada, 1816-1818

18 Feb.  1817

Sherwood, Adiel (1779-1874)
Sheriff of Leeds and Grenville County, U.C.
Land Treasurer
Brockville, U.C.

(See also :  Adriel Shearwood)

 8 Jan.  1831
 9 April 1932
31 Dec.  1834
26 Feb.  1835
 

Shields, William
Member of the Navy Board
London, England

22 Oct.  1814

Shipbuilding          n.d.



Shipbuilding - Great Lakes, U.C.          n.d.
23 Dec.  1816
14 May   1817
10 June  1818
3-12 Nov.1835

Shipbuilding - Montreal, L.C. 28 June  1815
 5 July  1815
10 July  1815
11 July  1815
13 July  1815
20 July  1815
 9 June -
 1 Sept. 1815

Shipbuilding - Quebec, L.C. 20 Jan.  1806
20 Nov.  1820
22 June  1825
19 July  1825
15 Nov.  1825
21 June  1826
16 Aug.  1826
23 Jan.  1827
20 Feb.  1828

Shipwreck - Cap Rosure  9 July  1832
11 July  1832
13 July  1832
 4 Nov.  1832
16 Jan.  1833

Shop Licence - Cornwall, U.C.  5 Jan.  1836

Smith, William (fl. 1811-1817)
Amherstburg, U.C.

 3 Oct.  1811
 6 May   1812
 6 Oct.  1815
14 May   1817
23 May   1817
23 May   1817

Smuggling - Tea, from Quebec to Scotland  7 July  1829
28 Oct.  1831



South Crosby Township, Ont. 15 Sept. 1811
 8 Jan.  1831
27 Feb.  1832
 9 April 1832
31 Dec.  1834
26 Feb.  1835
17 Nov.  1835
17 Nov.  1835

Spratt, Michael
Master Attendant
Kingston, U.C.

 1 Oct.  1816

Stewart & Black, Messrs.
Quebec lawyers

19 Jan.  1828
   June  1828
[1]4 Apr.1829
 9 Oct.  1829
22 Feb.  1830
26 March 1830

Stewart, Hon. John ([1794]-1858)
Legislative and Executive Councillor of Lower Canada

11 Dec.  1830

Strickland, Thomas (d. 1815)
Master Shipwright
Kingston Naval Dockyard, U.C.

20 July  1815
17-18
   Sept. 1815

Taply, William
Naval Dockyard Artificer, formerly at Amherstburg, U.C.
Kingston, U.C.

13 May   1814

Taxes - Upper Canada 29 Nov.  1830
 8 Jan.  1831
15 March 1831
14 Nov.  1831
17 Nov.  1831
21 Jan.  1832
24 Feb.  1832
27 Feb.  1832
28 Feb.  1832
 9 April 1832
31 July  1832
31 Dec.  1834
24 Jan.  1835
26 Feb.  1835



Taylor, George M.
Deputy Commissary General's Office
Quebec, L.C.

 4 Feb.  1801

Tea  7 July  1829
28 Oct.  1831

Thiselton, Charles A. (fl. 1829-1833)
[Banker]
William Bell's Agent
London, England

19 July  1825
11 Jan.  1826
11 Jan.  1826
31 July  1826

Thiselton, Charles A. (cont.)
[Banker]
William Bell's Agent
London, England

18 Nov.  1826
27 Jan.  1827
31 July  1827
20 Oct.  1827
23 Jan.  1828
31 July  1828
 7 Nov.  1828
 7 Jan.  1829
 7 July  1829
20 Nov.  1829
 7 Jan.  1830
 7 Jan.  1830
 7 July  1830
28 Oct.  1830
17 Jan.  1831
19 July  1831
 9 Jan.  1832
24 Jan.  1832
 7 July  1832
 7 Jan.  1833
29 Jan.  1833
11 May   1833

Timber Thefts 27 Nov.  1818
3-12 Nov.1835
17 Nov.  1835
17 Nov.  1835



Treasury
London, England

  (See also :  Pension 
             Pension Agents
             Pension Payments Memorandum
             Pension Requisitions)

 3 March 1818
13 June  1818
22 June  1818
30 June  1818
 2 July  1816 sic
13 July  1818
 1 July  1821
 1 Oct.  1835
15
17
17
17
17
17
19
46

105-106
101-103
104-106 

Treasury (cont.)
London, England

 1 April 1836

TRITON, vessel 13 July  1832

Turkish Empire 20 Nov.  1829

United States - Relations with Canada 3-12 Nov.1835

Usher, Charles (fl. 1808-1828)
[Boatswain, Provincial Marine Dept., Lake Erie, U.C.]
Amherstburg, U.C.

13 Feb.  1808
 6 Sept. 1813
20 July  1815
30 Dec.  1817
 5 Feb.  1828
 5 Feb.  1828
 6 Feb.  1828

Vermette, Paul
Côte Labraw, L.C.

25 Jan.  1833

Victualling Contractors
Montreal, Que.

 8 June  1772
11-17 Ju.1772



War of 1812 - War Losses Claim  8 Feb.  1817
10 Feb.  1817
14 Feb.  1817
14 Feb.  1817
18 Feb.  1817
26 Feb.  1817
27 Feb.  1817

 7 Jan.  1818
13 June  1818
13 July  1818
[12 Mar. 1823
 14 Mar. 1823]

Watts, Isaac (1674-1748)
English Hymn-writer

18 Nov. [1826]

Webb, Henry
Naval Dockyard Artificer, formerly at Amherstburg, U.C.
Kingston, U.C.

13 May   1814

WELLINGTON, brig
Captain, John Young

21 June  1832
 9 July  1832
11 July  1832
13 July  1832
 4 Nov.  1832

Wheeten, John
Naval Dockyard Artificer, formerly at Amherstburg, U.C.
Kingston, U.C.

13 May   1814

White, John
Naval Dockyard Artificer, formerly at Amherstburg, U.C.
Kingston, U.C.

13 May   1814

Williams, Benjamin
Banker
London, England

 3 March 1835

Woods, James
Attorney at Law
Sandwich, U.C.

 6 May   1812

Young, Mrs. ____
[Wife] of the Captain of the brig HARMONY sailing to Scotland

 7 July  1829



Young, ____
Captain of the brig HARMONY sailing to Scotland

 7 July  1829

Young, John
Captain of the brig WELLINGTON wrecked at Cap Rosure

 9 July  1832
11 July  1832
13 July  1832

Young, Capt. Robert
Trinity House, Quebec, L.C.

15 Feb.  1836


